MINUTES OF WESTERN BAY OF PLENTY DISTRICT COUNCIL ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING NO. OMC23-2 HELD IN THE ŌMOKOROA LIBRARY & SERVICE CENTRE, WESTERN AVENUE, ŌMOKOROA ON TUESDAY, 14 FEBRUARY 2023 AT 7.00PM

1 PRESENT

Chairperson P Presland, Deputy Chair A Hughes, Member B Bell, Member G Neilson, Cr M Grainger and Cr D Thwaites

2 IN ATTENDANCE

J Holyoake (Chief Executive Officer), A Hall (Roading Engineer East and West), and B Clarke (Senior Governance Advisor)

OTHERS PRESENT

Mayor J Denyer, Cr Murray-Benge, one member of the media (Lizard News), and as listed in the minutes.

3 APOLOGIES

Nil.

4 CONSIDERATION OF LATE ITEMS

Nil.

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Nil.

6 PUBLIC EXCLUDED ITEMS

Nil.

7 PUBLIC FORUM

7.1 CR MARGARET MURRAY-BENGE - COMMUNITY SAFETY IN ŌMOKOROA

Cr Murray-Benge, a Kaimai Ward Councillor, addressed the Board, campaigning for greater Police presence on the peninsula. She <u>Tabled Item 1</u>, which she read in full. Key points were as follows:

- The Board was supported in seeking a safer Ōmokoroa community, which was growing fast.
- Recently, two Ōmokoroa businesses had been ram-raided, one twice.
- There had been a number of burglaries and car thefts.
- A youth had been bullied and a woman accosted, both incidents were in the same local park.
- Ōmokoroa may have a Police Station in the future, so planning should begin now.
- The local Member of Parliament could help this being a higher priority for Government.
- With populations increasing, a greater Police presence was an urgent necessity both in Ōmokoroa, and throughout the Western Bay.

Cr Murray-Benge advised Council was holding a Kaimai Ward Community Forum on 15 February 2023 at 7.00pm. Councillors and staff could take part in informal discussion to hear and respond to the needs of the wider community. Outcomes from the Forum would be brought to Council's Community Committee, of which Cr Murray-Benge was Chairperson.

The Chairperson thanked Cr Murray-Benge for raising the issue. He addressed the topic as part of his Chairperson's report.

7.2 JIM BOYES - POLICE PRESENCE ON THE PENINSULA

MR BOYES, RESIDENT OF OMOKOROA, ADDRESSED THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

- HE WAS AWARE THE OMOKOROA COMMUNITY POLICING TRUST HAD LONG SOUGHT A GREATER POLICE PRESENCE ON THE PENINSULA. ON THAT BASIS, HE CONSIDERED THE TRUST WOULD SUPPORT CR MURRAY-BENGE'S PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD, WHICH HE ALSO, PERSONALLY, SUPPORTED.
- WITH THE COMMUNITY BOARD AND THE TRUST'S COMBINED EFFORTS, SOME ACTION MAY BE FORTHCOMING.

THE CHAIRPERSON THANKED MR BOYES FOR SPEAKING.

7.3 CHRIS DEVER - CONCERNING BEHAVIOURS - ROUNDABOUT - FORESHORE MAINTENANCE

MR DEVER, RESIDENT OF OMOKOROA, ADDRESSED THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

- BEHAVIOURS FROM SOME FACTIONS OF THE COMMUNITY WERE INEXCUSABLE, FOR EXAMPLE, DRIVING ALONG A ROAD KNOCKING DOWN LETTER BOXES. THIS CAUSED UNNECESSARY COMMUNITY TENSION.
- HE WAS CONCERNED THAT THE MAJOR ROUNDABOUT TO CONNECT THE PENINSULA TO THE STATE HIGHWAY(SH) WOULD NOT BE COMPLETED UNTIL 2025. THIS WAS TOO

LONG FOR RESIDENTS WHO WERE ALREADY QUEUING TO ENTER THE SH, HAVING TO WAIT FOR MANY CARS TO PASS BEFORE BEING LET INTO THE LINE OF TRAFFIC.

 IN RELATION TO COMMUNITY RESERVE EXPENDITURE, HE SOUGHT MORE FUNDING TOWARDS FORESHORE MAINTENANCE, PARTICULARLY BY THE RESERVE BETWEEN THE TOILETS AND SLIPWAY. HE FELT THAT NO ONE HAD GONE ON SITE AND MADE A PROPER ASSESSMENT.

CR GRAINGER GAVE A BRIEF EXPLANATION OF THE FUNCTION OF THE COMMUNITY RESERVE EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT.

THE CHAIRPERSON THANKED MR DEVER FOR RAISING TOPICAL MATTERS, ESPECIALLY RELATING TO WEATHER. HE NOTED THESE WERE EXTRAORDINARY TIMES AND WEATHER RELATED ISSUES WERE HAVING SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS ON PEOPLE'S LIVES. THE BOARD CONSIDERED THE COMMUNITY COULD HELP ITSELF, BY VOLUNTARILY ATTENDING TO SMALL TASKS RATHER THAN PHONING COUNCIL, WHICH WAS CURRENTLY DEALING WITH MAJOR ISSUES IN THE AREA.

8 MINUTES FOR CONFIRMATION

8.1 MINUTES OF THE ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD MEETING HELD 13 DECEMBER 2022

RESOLUTION OMC22-2.1

Moved: Deputy Chairperson A Hughes

Seconded: Member G Neilson

That the Minutes of the Ōmokoroa Community Board Meeting held on 13 December 2022, as circulated with the agenda, be confirmed as a true and correct record.

CARRIED

9 REPORTS

9.1 ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT - FEBRUARY 2023

The Board considered a report from the Chairperson. The report was taken as read, with further discussion on the **below** item:

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.2

Moved: Deputy Chairperson A Hughes

Seconded: Member B Bell

1. That the Chairperson's report, dated 14 February 2023, titled 'Ōmokoroa Community Board Chairperson's Report – February 2023' be received.

- 2. That Ōmokoroa Community Board Members be appointed as a representative to the following committees and organisations:
 - Ōmokoroa Environmental Managers

Member Allan Hughes

• Ōmokoroa Settlers Hall Society Inc. Committee

Member Greig Neilson

CARRIED

9.1.1 SAFETY IN THE COMMUNITY

The Chairperson advised as follows:

- There had been Board discussions in relation to safety in the community. This was a key focus for the Board.
- The Board and Councillors would work together to progress several elements of those discussions, including the desire to have a greater Police presence on the peninsula.
- The Board considered there were steps the community could take to "strengthen
 the ties that bind us", and it would look at how the Board's role may evolve as a
 result.
- It was acknowledged there was social change and growth within the Ōmokoroa community. It was time to address the concerning things that came to people's attention, and to work to prevent negative events and behaviours.

9.2 ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD COUNCILLOR'S REPORT - FEBRUARY 2023

Councillor Thwaites provided a <u>verbal</u> report, noting the following:

- There had been a pre-Christmas meeting about the Annual Plan process, but at the time of the Anniversary weekend weather event, Councillors had not been attending formal meetings. All Councillors had returned and were attending regular meetings from early February 2023 onwards.
- Government reform was underway and Council had been requested to submit on that, as part of the 'Future of Local Government' reforms.
- The Resource Management Act was being divided into three different elements.
- Council was holding the first ever Kaimai Ward Community Forum on 15 February 2023 at 7.00pm, as alluded to by Cr Murray-Benge in Public Forum. There were 5,500 properties in the Kaimai Ward who may benefit from having this forum opportunity, which was informal. Any issues arising could be referred to Council's Community Committee, and hopefully would yield outcomes for the Kaimai community.

- Every six years Council must undertake a full Representation Review and that was imminent, and would be a work in progress.
- There would be another Councillor Annual Plan workshop on Thursday, and the rates increase would be considered.
- New valuations for District about to be released.
- He and Cr Murray-Benge had been contacted by a person raising issues about grass, weeds, and gardens on the peninsula.
- In terms of the bus shelters for Kaimai Views, there were children standing in the rain to catch buses. The Prole Road bus shelter had been damaged in the storm and needed to be tidied up.

There were no questions of Cr Thwaites.

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.3

Moved: Member G Neilson Seconded: Member B Bell

That the <u>verbal report</u> provided by Councillor Thwaites on 14 February 2023 be received and the information noted.

CARRIED

9.3 ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD - ANZAC DAY COMMEMORATION 2023

The Board considered a report from the Senior Governance Advisor. The report was taken as read.

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.4

Moved: Cr M Grainger Seconded: Member B Bell

- 1. That the Senior Governance Advisor's report, dated 14 February 2023, titled 'Ōmokoroa Community Board ANZAC Day Commemoration 2023', be received.
- 2. That the report relates to an issue that is considered to be of low significance in terms of Council's Significance and Engagement Policy.
- 3. That the Ōmokoroa Community Board provides a wreath for the ANZAC Day Service, to be paid from the Ōmokoroa Community Board Contingency Account, (up to the value of \$200).
- 4. That <u>Chairperson Peter Presland</u> represents the Ōmokoroa Community Board at the ANZAC Day Service in Ōmokoroa on 25 April 2023.

CARRIED

9.4 INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP REPORT ŌMOKOROA COMMUNITY BOARD FEBRUARY 2023

The Board considered a report from the Deputy Chief Executive. The report was taken as read. Staff responded to questions as follows:

- Frustration over bus stops was acknowledged. They had been scheduled to be installed and it was not up to the Contractor to do that. This was in relation to bus stops in Kaimai Views and Pole Road. The Roading Engineer (East and West) would chase the project up again, particularly in view of the increased need with current weather.
- The interchange roundabout project was complex, involving significant design and construction factors, hence the approximately \$45M cost. Council could bring pictures of the design for the community to view.

The Chairperson spoke to the weeds on berms, noting that with the significant challenges put on Council with the weather events, it was understandable those responses were needed before some core tasks.

In response, Staff agreed that with all the weather events hitting one-after-the-other, resources were rightly going to significant works but once completed, resources would be returned to business-as-usual.

The Chairperson reiterated that the community could respond to some of the core tasks such as gardens, berms and rubbish, as needed in the meantime, to lift the load.

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.5

Moved: Deputy Chairperson A Hughes

Seconded: Member G Neilson

That the Deputy Chief Executive's report, dated 14 February 2023, titled 'Infrastructure Group Report Ōmokoroa Community Board February 2023', be received.

CARRIED

9.5 FINANCIAL REPORT ŌMOKOROA - DECEMBER 2022

The Board considered a report from the Financial Business Advisor. The report was taken as read with further discussion on the **below** points:

The recommendation was taken in parts as follows:

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.6 - PART 1

Moved: Member B Bell

Seconded: Deputy Chairperson A Hughes

1. That the Financial Business Advisor's report, dated 14 February 2023, titled 'Financial Report Ōmokoroa – December 2022', be received.

CARRIED

9.5.1 BUS SHELTERS IN OMOKOROA ROAD (REF. OM1.8)

Councillor Grainger raised the matter of Committed - Reserve Expenditure' contribution of up to \$50,000 for two Bus Shelters in Ōmokoroa Road. He spoke to historic reasons behind the money being set aside for a bus shelter for the elderly nineteen years ago, that Ōmokoroa Stage 1 had been delayed more than once, and the bus shelter was still not there.

The Board considered it would seek further information about location and practical requirements for bus shelters. Staff advised they would check plans and notify the Board accordingly.

RESOLUTION OMC23-2.7 - PART 2

Moved: Deputy Chairperson A Hughes

Seconded: Member G Neilson

That the below 'part 2' of the recommendation in the Financial Business Advisor's report **lie on the table** until further information is forthcoming:

2. The Ōmokoroa Community Board requests that the 'Committed - Reserve Expenditure' contribution of up to \$50,000 for two Bus Shelters in Ōmokoroa Road (Ref. OMI.8), be released back to the Reserve Account, noting the contribution is no longer required, as the works will be completed as part of Ōmokoroa Road Urbanisation Stage 2.

CARRIED

9.5.2 WAKA KOTAHI (NZTA) DISCUSSIONS WITH LANDOWNERS FOR NEW DESIGNATION TO BUILD THE TAURANGA NORTHERN LINK (TNL)

Cr Thwaites advised that Waka Kotahi (NZTA) were undertaking discussions with all the landowners from Loop Road out to Stage 2 of the new Tauranga Northern Link (TNL) and were looking to come to Council for the new designation to build the TNL. That process was underway and letters had been sent to all the landowners.

He noted that every Wednesday fortnight, between 2.00pm and 4.00pm, the public was welcome to call in to TNL office at the driveway past Te Puna roundabout and TNL staff were there to advise.

The meeting was declared closed at 7.46pm.

The minutes were confirmed as a true and correct record at the Ōmokoroa Community Board meeting held on 11 April 2023.

Chairperson P Presland

CHAIRPERSON